
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

AGENDA

JUNE 13, 2019

6:00 P.M.

Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes: May 09, 2019

Final Plats

Consent Agenda

(1) P-0419-19 Overton Investments, LLC Is Requesting A Final Plat Approval For 
Resurvey Of Lots 8 And 9 Cove At Overton South. The Purpose for 
This Request Is to Subdivide Two Lots Into Three. The Property Is Owned 
By Overton Investments, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-6.

(2) P-0519-28 Sunview Partners, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 
Knollwood Court. The Purpose for This Request Is to Subdivide Two 
Lots Into Ten. The Property Is Owned By Sunview Partners, LLC and Is 
Zoned Vestavia Hills R-9.

(3) P-0619-31 Jon Culver And Tucker & Company Are Requesting Final Plat Approval
For Overton Investments Resurvey Of New Merkle. The Purpose for 
This Request Is to Resurvey Lot Lines. The Property Is Owned By Jon 
Culver And Tucker & Company and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-9 & R-4.

(4) P-0619-32 City Of Vestavia Hills Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Cahaba 
Heights Elementary Subdivision. The Purpose for This Request Is to 
Amend Lot Lines. The Property Is Owned By City Of Vestavia Hills &
Vestavia Hills School Board and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills Inst-1.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations



(5) P-0219-23 Catherine Waters Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for A Home 
Occupation Located At 621 Liberty Lake Dr. The Property Is Owned By 
Catherine Waters and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PR-1.

(6) P-0619-30 Chase Beard, et al, Are Requesting Rezoning For Magnolia Cove 
Subdivision from Jefferson County R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The 
Purpose Of Annexation.



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

MAY 09, 2019

6:00 P.M.

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this 
date at 6:00 P.M. following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. The roll was called 
with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Blaine House, Vice-Chair
Jonathan Romeo
Rusty Weaver
Cheryl Cobb
Fred Goodwin
Hasting Sykes

MEMBERS ABSENT: Erica Barnes, Chair
Lyle Larson
Greg Gilchrist

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner
Christopher Brady, City Engineer

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. House stated that the minutes of the meeting April 11, 2019 are presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to approve minutes as amended was by Mr. Larson and second was by Mr. 
Gilchrist.  Voice vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Weaver– yes
Ms. Cobb – abstained Mr. House – yes
Motion carried.

Final Plats

Consent Agenda



(1) P-0519-25 Unless U Is Requesting A Final Plat Approval For Final Plat Of The 
Resurvey Of Lots 13, 14, & 15 Block 9, Of South Birmingham Heights.
The Purpose for This Request Is to Combine Lots. The Property Is Owned 
By Unless U and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.

(2) P-0519-27 Overton Investments, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Overton 
Investments Resurvey No 1 Of Hermitage Forrest. The Purpose for This 
Request Is to Resurvey Two Lots Into Five. The Property Is Owned By 
Overton Investments, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-9.

(3) P-0519-28 Sunview Partners, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Knollwood 
Court. The Purpose for This Request Is to Subdivide Two Lots Into Ten.
The Property Is Owned By Sunview Partners, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia 
Hills R-9.

(4) P-0519-29 Suzanne Mosely Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Nicholls Canyon 
Subdivision. The Purpose for This Request Is to Subdivide One Lot Into 
Three. The Property Is Owned By Suzanne Mosely and Is Zoned Vestavia 
Hills R-2.

Mr. Garrison stated that item #3 is being postponed until next month.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to approve items 1, 2, & 4. Second was by Ms. Cobb.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Weaver– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. House – yes
Motion carried.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations:

P-0519-22 Overton Investments, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning For 3038 Massey Rd. 
from Vestavia Hills RC-1 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of New 
Residential Development. 

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated townhomes would replace a 
burned condo building.

Charles Kessler was present to explain the request. He stated that the 15 unit condo building would 
instead be 9 townhome units.

Mr. House asked Mr. Brady to explain the improvements on Massey Rd.

Mr. House opened the floor for a public hearing.  



Sylvester and Chris Bissett, 3040 Massey Rd., expressed concerns about drainage and a purported
easement in the rear of the property.

Mr. House closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning From Vestavia Hills RC-1 to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for The Property Located At 3038 Massey Road. Second was by Mr. Romeo.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Weaver– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. House – yes
Motion carried.

P-0219-23 Catherine Waters Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for A Home 
Occupation Located At 621 Liberty Lake Dr. The Property Is Owned By 
Catherine Waters and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PR-1.

Case postponed until June.

P-0519-24 Paul & Gail Ausbeck Is Requesting Rezoning For 1109 Winward Ln. from 
Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of New 
Residential Development. 

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated the two lots are undersized and 
rather get a litany of variances the applicants will apply for a rezoning. The request also amends the 
common lot line.

Jason Kessler was present to answer any questions the Commission had.

Mr. House asked if the houses would have sewer. Mr. Kessler answered in the affirmative. 

Ms. Cobb asked access to the homes. Mr. Kessler stated access would be granted in the rear.

Mr. House opened the floor for a public hearing. 

Catherine Benefield, 1520 Canton Rd.; Allen & Mary Rodgers, 1912 Mission Rd.;Eric Dees, 111 
Winward Ln.; Paul Newman, 1415 Heitford Ln.; Lisa Homes, and 1110 Mayland Ln. all spoke in 
opposition due to concerns about density.

Mr. House and Mr. Garrison both explained that the request is not changing density but setbacks.

Jeff Tenner, 1925 Mission Rd., asked if trees on the lot would be removed and if a rear buffer 
would be planted. Mr. Garrison stated that there are not landscaping requirements for a single 
family house.

A discussion ensued about the front setback. Mr. Kessler stated he could pull the front setback back 
to appease neighbors.



Mr. House closed the public hearing. 

MOTION Mr. Weaver made a motion to recommend Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-2 To 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for The Property Located At 1109 Winward Lane with the following conditions:

A) Front setback to be set at 35 feet along Winward Ln.
Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Weaver– yes
Ms. Cobb – yes Mr. House – yes
Motion carried.

Conrad Garrison, City Planner



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JUNE 13, 2019

CASE: P-0419-19

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Lot 8 in Overton Cove

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3183 & 3187 Overton Cove

APPLICANT/OWNER: Overton Investments

REPRESENTING AGENT: Jason Kessler

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey two lots in Overton Cove. The 
applicant intends to subdivide the two lots into three and to build 3 single family 
dwellings on the properties. There is a 20’ sanitary sewer easement that runs through 
lots 8B and 9A, as well as a 20’ utility easement that fronts all 3 lots. A sanitary 
sewer easement will be vacated by the City Council on 6/24. The lots are currently 
zoned R-6. Even after resurveying Lot 8 and Lot 9 into three lots, all three lots will 
still meet the density requirements under an R-6 zoning.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: This request is consistent with the 
plan for planned residential district.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted







VA
R

IA
BL

E 
W

ID
TH

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
FO

R
 IN

G
R

ES
S/

EG
R

ES
S 

& 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

M
B.

 2
33

, P
G

. 4
7

59
.9

8'

162.86'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

162.86'

162.86'

162.86'

59
.9

8'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'

90
°00

'00
"

90
°00

'00
"

90
°00

'00
"

90
°0

0'0
0"

90
°00

'00
"

90
°00

'00
"

90
°00

'00
"

90
°0

0'0
0"

C/L 20' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
VACATED BY: _____________________

20' SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT

1 
O

F 
1

FINAL PLAT

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT No.:

DATE:

SCALE:

RKC

KESS0055

REVISIONS MBADATE

March 27, 2019

1" = 20''

26
01

3

SU
R

V
EY

O
R

:
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 D
ES

IG
N

 G
R

O
U

P 
LL

C
12

0 
B

IS
H

O
P 

C
IR

C
LE

 S
U

IT
E 

30
0

PE
LH

A
M

, A
LA

B
A

M
A

 3
51

24
(2

05
) 4

03
-9

15
8

C
O

N
TA

C
T:

 R
O

D
N

EY
 C

U
N

N
IN

G
H

A
M

, P
.L

.S
.

O
W

N
ER

:
O

V
ER

TO
N

 IN
V

ES
TM

EN
TS

, L
LC

35
05

 B
EN

T 
R

IV
ER

 R
D

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, A
L 

35
21

6

N
O

TE
S:

D
IR

EC
TO

R
 O

F 
EN

VI
R

O
N

M
EN

TA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
D

AT
E

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
TA

L 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AP
PR

O
VA

L 
IN

D
IC

AT
ES

 T
H

AT
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
H

AS
BE

EN
 R

EV
IE

W
ED

 F
O

R
 P

R
O

VI
SI

O
N

S 
O

F 
FU

TU
R

E 
O

R
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

S;
 H

O
W

EV
ER

TH
IS

 D
O

ES
 N

O
T 

M
EA

N
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
S 

H
AV

E 
BE

EN
 B

U
IL

T 
O

R
 W

IL
L 

BE
 B

U
IL

T 
IN

 T
H

E 
FU

TU
R

E.
AN

Y 
C

H
AN

G
E 

IN
 T

H
E 

R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 O
R

 E
AS

EM
EN

T 
BO

U
N

D
AR

IE
S 

AF
TE

R
 T

H
IS

 D
AT

E 
M

AY
 V

O
ID

TH
IS

 A
PP

R
O

VA
L.

AP
PR

O
VE

D
 IN

 F
O

R
M

AT
 O

N
LY

:

SI
TE

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

AP
N

.T
.S

.



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MAY 9, 2019

CASE: P-0519-28

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Two Lots on Sunview 
Drive.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3009 & 3017 Sunview Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Sunview Partners, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Bob Easley

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat will complete the Knollwood Court rezoning and 
dedicate Knollwood Ct. as a private street.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted







R
E

C
 M

A
P

 K
N

O
LL

W
O

O
D

 C
T.

dw
g 

M
od

el
 4

/2
4/

20
19

 1
2:

10
:5

3



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JUNE 13, 2019

CASE: P-0619-31

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Three Lots, 2 On Poe
Drive & 1 On Glass Drive.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3784 & 3782 Poe Drive; 3785 Glass Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Jon Culver & Tucker and Company

REPRESENTING AGENT: Charles Kessler

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey three lots in accordance with 
previously approved resurvey. This final plat is also tied into an upcoming BZA case
to make 3782 Poe Drive compliant with city code. 3784 Poe Drive & 3785 Glass 
Drive are zoned R-9 and 3782 Poe Drive is zoned R-4.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: This request is consistent with the 
plan for planned residential district.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JUNE 13, 2019

CASE: P-0619-32

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Lots At Cahaba 
Heights Elementary School

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4401 & 4405 Dolly Ridge Road

APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Vestavia Hills

REPRESENTING AGENT: Pat Boone

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey lots at Cahaba Heights Elementary 
School site, the parcels including the school and the park. This resurvey will move 
forward with the various conveyances between the City of Vestavia Hills and the 
Vestavia Hills Board of Education. This action is also taken in pursuit of the Vestavia 
Hills Community Spaces plan. 

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MAY 9, 2019

CASE: P-0519-23

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For Home Occupation

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 621 Liberty Lake Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Catherine Waters

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The applicant wishes to conduct a home based business 
in Liberty Park. As required by the Liberty Park PUD a conditional use permit is 
required for a home based business. A description of the applicants business, as well 
as an approval letter from Liberty Park and the apartment complex is attached. The 
property is zoned PR-1.

Liberty Park Master Plan: This request is consistent with the procedures of the 
Liberty Park PUD.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission recommend 
approval with the following conditions: 
1. Home occupations shall be conducted only in the principal dwelling. No 
more than twenty-five (25) percent, up to 500 sq. ft., of the dwelling may be 
used for a home occupation.
2. There shall be no outdoor display or storage associated with the home 
occupation and no commodities shall be sold on the premises other than by 
phone, mail or internet. No goods shall be delivered to a purchaser on the 
premises.
3. No sign may be attached to the dwelling or any part of the real estate 
advertising any home occupation.
4. No home occupation shall be permitted if it creates noise, odors, vibrations 
or traffic congestion, which interferes with the residential qualities of the 
neighborhood insofar as health, safety, morals, convenience and general 
welfare are concerned.



2

5. In order to be a permitted home occupation, the use must be one which is 
habitually, customarily, and commonly established as a reasonable incidental, 
accessory, subordinate and secondary use. The existing dwelling shall not be 
enlarged to accommodate the home occupation; nor shall any accessory 
structure be built for the purpose of operating the home occupation.
6. No home occupation shall be permitted that requires the operation or 
keeping on premises of a commercial vehicle.
7. No persons other than members of the family residing on the premises shall 
be employed by the home occupation.
8. Home occupations shall be limited to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 
10:00 p.m.

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JUNE 13, 2019

CASE: P-0619-30

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning JC R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Magnolia Cove Estates

APPLICANT/OWNER: Multiple Applicants

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The subdivision was recently annexed into the City with 
the passage of Ordinance 2842 on 4/22/19. Applicants are seeking to rezone 
Magnolia Cove Estates from JC R-2 to R-9. A compatible rezoning would be VH R-
1, however, the lots and homes within the subdivision would not meet the minimum 
requirements. The setbacks for the lots are illustrated in the recorded plat. There is 
also construction underway to construct homes on the lots that are currently empty. 
There are 13 total lots in the subdivision. All current easements will remain.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistant with 
the plan for medium density re

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 



































































Magnolia Cove Subdivision






